
Comments submitted in advance are preferable. Comments may be submitted by phone at 541-336-2247 extension 
2060 or by e-mail at lisa.figueroa@cityoftoledo.org. The meeting is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request 
for an interpreter for the hearing impaired, or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities, should be made 
at least 48 hours in advance of the meeting by calling city offices at (541) 336-2247.       Page 1 

CITY OF TOLEDO AGENDA 

City Hall  
206 N. Main St. 

Toledo, Oregon  97391 
6:00 p.m. 

 
TOLEDO CITY COUNCIL  

Regular Meeting – Via Zoom Meeting Platform 
March 17, 2021 

 
Virtual Meeting: Due to the governor’s executive order, the City Council will hold the meeting 
through the Zoom video meeting platform. The public is invited to attend the meeting 
electronically. 
 
Public Comments:  The City Council may take limited verbal comments during the meeting. 
Written comments may be submitted by email to lisa.figueroa@cityoftoledo.org 3:00 p.m. the day 
of the meeting to be included in the record. Comments received will be shared with the City 
Council and included in the record.  
 
1. Call to Order and roll call  
 
2. Visitors/Public Comment 

(The public comment period provides the public with an opportunity to address the City 
Council regarding items not on the agenda. Please limit your comments to three (3) 
minutes).  

 
3. Consent Agenda  

Minutes from the Goal Setting held February 23, 2021 and the Work Session held 
February 24, 2021 
 

4. Discussion Items  
There are no items for discussion 
 

5. Decision Items  
 Renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement with the Greater Toledo Pool & 

Recreation District  
 Resolution No. 1461, A Resolution of the Toledo City Council establishing a Master 

Fee Schedule for services provided by the City of Toledo and repealing Resolution 
No. 1377 

 Annexation of property NE Sturdevant Road and approval of contract with Civil 
West for engineering of Sewer extension to the property 

 
6. Reports and Comments  

 Committee updates 
 

7. Adjournment 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 1 of 26

mailto:lisa.figueroa@cityoftoledo.org


  

February 23, 2021 City of Toledo Goal Setting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

 

TOLEDO CITY COUNCIL 1 

GOAL SETTING 2 
February 23, 2021 3 

1:00 p.m.  4 

 5 

1. CALL TO ORDER 6 
Mayor Rod Cross called the meeting to order at 1:24 p.m. electronically via Zoom in Toledo, 7 

Oregon.  8 
 9 
 10 

Present  Absent   

X    Mayor Rod Cross 

X    Council President Joshua Smith  

X    Councilor Jackie Kauffman  

X    Councilor Heather Jukich  

  X  Councilor Todd Michels 

X    Councilor Betty Kamikawa 

    Vacant 

 11 

Staff present: City Manager (CM) Judy Richter, City Recorder (CR) Lisa Figueroa, Police Chief 12 

(PC) Michael Pace, Public Works Director (PWD) Bill Zuspan, City Attorney (CA) David 13 

Robinson, Library Director (LD) Deborah Trusty, Accounting Supervisor (AS) Cindy Olivieri 14 

 15 

Visitors present: John Morgan  16 

 17 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  18 

Goal Setting discussion – Identify goals for fiscal year 2021-2022 19 
Following introductions, Mr. Morgan reviewed the Council’s role in regards to policy decisions 20 

and determining whether there is enough resources, budget, staff, etc. to accomplish priorities. He 21 

provided examples of other cities and how they determined what resources they needed to 22 

accomplish goals.   23 

 24 

Mr. Morgan reviewed the Departments’ goals and accomplishments and indicated he did not think 25 

staff accomplished many of the 2020-2021 goals. Council clarified the objectives each of the 26 

Department Directors accomplished that were not highlighted in the list.  27 

 28 

The Council indicated they would support the same goals as 2020-2021, but indicated they would 29 

like to see information from staff in regards to how immediate a need may be (e.g., is the equipment 30 

needed now, need in two years, etc.). There was a consensus of the Council that felt infrastructure 31 

is the highest priority. The Council agreed to include, “Adopt equitable water and sewer rates and 32 

other sources of income that provide sufficient revenue to complete needed infrastructure projects” 33 

under the Water/Sewer Rates goal as well as timelines. There was discussion about including a 34 

statement of values alongside the goals to emphasize the importance of the goals to the City 35 

Council.  36 

 37 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 2 of 26



  

February 23, 2021 City of Toledo Goal Setting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

 

There was discussion about the possibility of using a GO Bond to finance the upgrades to the 1 

Public Safety building.  2 

The Council considered the following timelines: 3 

 Initial Strategic Plan should be completed within the fiscal year 4 

 Housing; within five (5) years and ongoing  5 

 Emergency Preparedness; within two (2) years  6 

 Economic Development within two (2) years and ongoing  7 

o Establish the Urban Renewal District within the fiscal year  8 

 City Communications; ongoing but find better ways to communicate on the internet and 9 

through the website 10 

 Sustainability; ongoing  11 

 12 

The Council considered adding a copy of the draft goals in the newsletter for public feedback 13 

before they are adopted. CM Richter indicated staff would work with Mr. Morgan to prepare a 14 

draft list and will bring the list back to Council in a future meeting.  15 

 16 

3. ADJOURNMENT 17 
The meeting adjourned at 4:05 p.m. 18 

 19 

ATTEST:                   APPROVE: 20 

 21 

 22 

_____________________________                                     ______________________________ 23 

City Recorder Lisa Figueroa                                               Mayor Rod Cross 24 

  25 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 3 of 26



  

February 24, 2021 City of Toledo Work Session Minutes Page 1 of 3 

 

TOLEDO CITY COUNCIL 1 

WORK SESSION 2 
February 24, 2021 3 

6:00 p.m.  4 

 5 

1. CALL TO ORDER 6 
Mayor Rod Cross called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. electronically via Zoom in Toledo, 7 

Oregon.  8 
 9 
 10 

Present  Absent   

X    Mayor Rod Cross 

X    Council President Joshua Smith  

X    Councilor Jackie Kauffman  

X    Councilor Heather Jukich  

X    Councilor Todd Michels 

X    Councilor Betty Kamikawa 

    Vacant 

 11 

Staff present: City Manager (CM) Judy Richter, City Recorder (CR) Lisa Figueroa, Police Chief 12 

(PC) Michael Pace, Public Works Director (PWD) Bill Zuspan, City Attorney (CA) David 13 

Robinson, Library Director (LD) Deborah Trusty, Fire Chief (FC) Larry Robeson 14 

 15 

Visitors present: Craig Lash, Sheila Stiley  16 

 17 

2. PRESENTATIONS/PROCLAMATIONS 18 

Proclamation – COVID-19 Memorial Day 19 
Councilor Kamikawa indicated she was contacted requesting the Council to announce a 20 

proclamation in memory of people who have been impacted by the coronavirus (COVID-19). 21 

Mayor Cross read the proclamation and declared March 1, 2021 as COVID-19 Memorial Day.  22 

 23 

3. VISITORS/PUBLIC COMMENT  24 
There were no comments.  25 

 26 

4. CONSENT AGENDA  27 

Consider approval of Minutes from the Regular Meeting held February 3, 2021 28 
 29 

Motion – It was moved and seconded (Smith/Kamikawa) approve the consent agenda as presented 30 

and the motion carried unanimously.  31 

 32 

5. DISCUSSION  33 
There were no items for discussion.  34 

 35 

 36 

 37 

 38 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 4 of 26



  

February 24, 2021 City of Toledo Work Session Minutes Page 2 of 3 

 

6. DECISION ITEMS  1 

Interview and consider appointment to the Planning Commission 2 
CR Figueroa presented the council report and introduced Mr. Dyson to the Council. The Council 3 

interviewed Mr. Dyson and he provided his background to the City Council.  4 

 5 

Motion – It was moved and seconded (Jukich/Kamikawa) to appoint Mr. Dyson to the Planning 6 

Commission to fill an unexpired term and the motion carried unanimously.  7 

 8 

Discussion of process to fill City Council vacancy 9 
CR Figueroa presented the council report, which included a proposed timeline for the recruitment 10 

process. She also indicated the interview questions are included for review in case the Council 11 

wanted to modify them. The Council considered the timeline and there was a consensus to appoint 12 

and seat an individual on April 7 as the last item of business and then the appointed Council 13 

member would go through orientation before the April 21 meeting.  14 

 15 

Ordinance No. 1390, An ordinance amending Ordinance 1306 the Toledo Property 16 

Inventory Code, repealing Ordinance No. 1383 in its entirety and declaring an emergency 17 
 18 

CA Robinson provided the council report and indicated ordinance 1383 was an attempt to bring 19 

the Toledo Municipal Code into compliance but it got overruled. He said the proposed ordinance 20 

includes more specificity.  21 

 22 

Motion – It was moved and seconded (Smith/Kamikawa) to adopt Ordinance No. 1390, An 23 

Ordinance of the Toledo City Council amending Ordinance 1306 the Toledo Property Inventory 24 

Code, repealing Ordinance No. 1383 in its entirety and declaring an emergency by title only and 25 

the motion carried unanimously. 26 

 27 

7. REPORTS AND COMMENTS  28 
LD Trusty said the Library will participate in the Lincoln County Library Reads program, which 29 

features the book Circe by Madeline Miller. She said there will also be a virtual meeting with Ms. 30 

Miller in April and the Library has several copies for patrons to borrow.  31 

 32 

PC Pace said the department is in the process of installing two new dispatch stations and 33 

construction will continue through mid-March. He indicated the lobby to the Police Station will 34 

be closed during construction.  35 

 36 

FC Robeson reported to the Council on the department’s activity and the weekly trainings they 37 

perform.   38 

 39 

CM Richter thanked the Council members at the Goal setting and indicated staff will work with 40 

Mr. Morgan to draft a final set of goals for the Council to review. She indicated she finished 41 

preparing the budget for the electric vehicle car charging stations, which would include three units. 42 

She said the budget has been forwarded to the Department of Environmental Quality for review 43 

and once it is approved, the City will receive a payment from Georgia-Pacific Mill for $44,640.00. 44 

She said she will then present a supplemental budget to the Council to install those units before 45 

the end of the fiscal year.  46 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 5 of 26



  

February 24, 2021 City of Toledo Work Session Minutes Page 3 of 3 

 

CP Smith asked a clarification question about a tube in the sidewalk near Memorial Field and 1 

PWD Zuspan indicated it was installed about a year ago to help remove water from Memorial 2 

Field.  3 

 4 

Mayor Cross reminded the Council to seek out volunteers. He indicated he was pleased to meet 5 

with Mr. Morgan and review all the accomplishments staff completed last year even with the 6 

challenges of COVID-19.  7 

 8 

8. ADJOURNMENT 9 
The meeting adjourned at 6:56 p.m. 10 

 11 

ATTEST:                   APPROVE: 12 

 13 

 14 

_____________________________                                     ______________________________ 15 

City Recorder Lisa Figueroa                                               Mayor Rod Cross 16 

  17 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 6 of 26



CITY OF TOLEDO 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

Meeting Date:  Agenda Topic: 

March 17, 2021 
Renewal of Intergovernmental 
Agreement with the Greater 
Toledo Pool & Recreation 
District  

Council Goal: Agenda Type: 

Not Applicable Decision Items 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: 

City Manager J. Richter City Manager Judy Richter City Manager Judy Richter 

 
Recommendation:  
Motion to extend the Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with the Greater Toledo Pool Recreation 
District as written for another three years.   
 
 
Background:  
Paul Steenkolk met with the Council on March 3. He outlined all of the improvements made to the 
pool in the last year. He also presented the goals and objectives they are working on.   
Attached is the water consumption report for the last five years.  It appears by looking at the last two 
months of usage that they many have resolved some of their water usage issues.   
The City of Toledo entered into an IGA with the Greater Toledo Pool Recreation District for three 
years which expired on February 28, 2021.  The IGA agreed that the City would furnish the pool with 
up to 200,000 gallons of water each month at no charge.        
             
     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: Fiscal Year: GL Number: 

– 2020-2021 – 

 
Attachment: 
1. Current IGA for Greater Toledo Pool Recreation District 
2. Water usage report for 2015 to present 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 7 of 26



March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 8 of 26

att1, IGA 



March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 9 of 26



March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 10 of 26



March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 11 of 26



March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 12 of 26



Account Number Read Date Reading Consumption Reading Period/Year

001369-000 2/22/2021 12,621,000 97,000 02/2021

001369-000 1/22/2021 12,524,000 69,000 01/2021

001369-000 12/23/2020 12,455,000 164,000 12/2020

001369-000 12/3/2020 12,291,000 0 12/2020

001369-000 10/28/2020 12,291,000 147,000 10/2020

001369-000 7/29/2020 12,144,000 0 07/2020

001369-000 6/24/2020 12,144,000 36,000 06/2020

001369-000 5/27/2020 12,108,000 246,000 05/2020

001369-000 4/23/2020 11,862,000 216,000 04/2020

001369-000 3/25/2020 11,646,000 197,000 03/2020

001369-000 2/24/2020 11,449,000 169,000 02/2020

001369-000 1/27/2020 11,280,000 218,000 01/2020

001369-000 12/20/2019 11,062,000 203,000 12/2019

001369-000 11/20/2019 10,859,000 168,000 11/2019

001369-000 10/25/2019 10,691,000 247,000 10/2019

001369-000 9/25/2019 10,444,000 178,000 09/2019

001369-000 8/26/2019 10,266,000 172,000 08/2019

001369-000 7/25/2019 10,094,000 188,000 07/2019

001369-000 6/24/2019 9,906,000 140,000 06/2019

001369-000 5/24/2019 9,766,000 164,000 05/2019

001369-000 4/24/2019 9,602,000 182,000 04/2019

001369-000 3/21/2019 9,420,000 113,000 03/2019

001369-000 2/26/2019 9,307,000 160,000 02/2019

001369-000 1/29/2019 9,147,000 252,000 01/2019

001369-000 12/21/2018 8,895,000 226,000 12/2018

001369-000 11/19/2018 8,669,000 144,000 11/2018

001369-000 10/24/2018 8,525,000 241,000 10/2018

001369-000 9/24/2018 8,284,000 78,000 09/2018

001369-000 8/27/2018 8,206,000 217,000 08/2018

001369-000 7/23/2018 7,989,000 236,000 07/2018

001369-000 6/20/2018 7,753,000 182,000 06/2018

001369-000 5/23/2018 7,571,000 170,000 05/2018

001369-000 4/23/2018 7,401,000 173,000 04/2018

001369-000 3/23/2018 7,228,000 171,000 03/2018

001369-000 2/21/2018 7,057,000 178,000 02/2018

001369-000 1/24/2018 6,879,000 194,000 01/2018

001369-000 12/21/2017 6,685,000 205,000 12/2017

001369-000 11/21/2017 6,480,000 174,000 11/2017

001369-000 10/23/2017 6,306,000 258,000 10/2017

001369-000 9/21/2017 6,048,000 197,000 09/2017

001369-000 8/25/2017 5,851,000 197,000 08/2017

001369-000 7/21/2017 5,654,000 143,000 07/2017

001369-000 6/21/2017 5,511,000 129,000 06/2017

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 13 of 26

att2, usage history



001369-000 5/24/2017 5,382,000 147,000 05/2017

001369-000 4/24/2017 5,235,000 182,000 04/2017

001369-000 3/24/2017 5,053,000 156,000 03/2017

001369-000 2/22/2017 4,897,000 150,000 02/2017

001369-000 1/24/2017 4,747,000 171,000 01/2017

001369-000 12/21/2016 4,576,000 169,000 12/2016

001369-000 11/22/2016 4,407,000 169,000 11/2016

001369-000 10/25/2016 4,238,000 226,000 10/2016

001369-000 9/22/2016 4,012,000 215,000 09/2016

001369-000 8/24/2016 3,797,000 310,000 08/2016

001369-000 7/25/2016 3,487,000 383,000 07/2016

001369-000 6/22/2016 3,104,000 353,000 06/2016

001369-000 5/20/2016 2,751,000 322,000 05/2016

001369-000 4/21/2016 2,429,000 333,000 04/2016

001369-000 3/22/2016 2,096,000 349,000 03/2016

001369-000 2/19/2016 1,747,000 351,000 02/2016

001369-000 1/22/2016 1,396,000 337,000 01/2016

001369-000 12/24/2015 1,059,000 434,000 12/2015

001369-000 11/20/2015 625,000 315,000 11/2015

001369-000 10/26/2015 310,000 310,000 10/2015

000000-000 9/30/2015 0 0.00 10/2015

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 14 of 26



CITY OF TOLEDO 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Meeting Date: Agenda Topic: 

March 17, 2021 
Resolution No. 1461, A 
Resolution of the Toledo City 
Council establishing a Master 
Fee Schedule for services 
provided by the City of Toledo 
and repealing Resolution No. 
1377 

Council Goal: Agenda Type: 

Not Applicable Decision Items 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: 

City Recorder L. Figueroa City Manager Judy Richter City Manager Judy Richter 

Recommendation:  
Motion to adopt Resolution No. 1461, A Resolution of the Toledo City Council establishing a Master 
Fee Schedule for services provided by the City of Toledo and repealing Resolution No. 1377.  

Background: 
The City of Toledo is dedicated to provide services that Toledo’s citizens need, want and are willing 
to support. Toledo Municipal Code and ordinances authorize the City Council to establish fees for 
such services by Resolution.  

Services fees have not been reviewed since 2016 and attached is proposed Resolution No. 1461 and 
Exhibit A – Master Fee Schedule, which includes proposed fees/increases to current services. The 
proposed fees are consistent with the Toledo Municipal Code and/or state laws (e.g. Liquor License 
application fees, etc.) that authorize the City to impose fees.  

Fiscal Impact: Fiscal Year: GL Number: 

N/A 2020-2021 N/A 

Attachment: 
1. Resolution No. 1461

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 15 of 26



 

City of Toledo Resolution No. 1461  Page 1 of 1 

CITY OF TOLEDO 

RESOLUTION NO. 1461 

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOLEDO CITY COUNCIL ESTABLISHING A MASTER FEE 

SCHEDULE FOR SERVICES PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF TOLEDO AND 

REPEALING RESOLUTION NO. 1377 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Toledo provides a variety of services to the public and wishes to recover 

costs from providing City services; and 

 

WHEREAS, Fees have not been reviewed since Resolution No. 1377 was adopted in 2016; and 

 

WHEREAS, Attached as ‘Exhibit A’ is a Master Fee Schedule incorporating fees for the 

Administration, Library, Public Works, Police and Fire Departments; and  

 

WHEREAS, The Toledo Municipal Code authorizes the City Council to adopt fees annually for 

said services. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF TOLEDO HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. Resolution No. 1377 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

 

Section 2. The charges listed as ‘Exhibit A – Master Fee Schedule’ are adopted and effective 

immediately upon passage by the Toledo City Council  

 
That this Resolution shall be effective upon passage by the City Council this 17th day of March, 

2021.  

 
APPROVED:        ATTEST: 

 

     

______________________________   __________________________ 

Mayor Rod Cross       City Recorder Lisa Figueroa 

 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 16 of 26



City of Toledo  
Master Fee Schedule 

Resolution No. 1461, Exhibit A – Master Fee Schedule  Page 1 of 4

ADMINISTRATION 

Administrative (Admin) Fee 25% of cost 

Public Records Request Fees (set by Resolution No.1416) 

Photocopies 

8.5 x 11, per side $0.50 

8.5 x 14 & 11 x 17, per side $1.00 

Lien Search $20.00 

City Documents (listed; all available on the city website) $20.00 

Annual Audit Report $20.00 

Budget Document $20.00 

City Charter $20.00 

Comprehensive Land Use Plan $20.00 

Transportation System Plan $20.00 

Water Master Plan $20.00 

Water Management and Conservation Plan $20.00 

Facility Use 

Meeting rooms $50.00/per day 

Special & Outdoor Event Permit 

Public spaces (e.g. Memorial Field, etc.) $150/per day 

Returned Check $25.00 

Business license application 

1-2 employees $60.00 

3-5 employees $85.00 

6-10 employees $110.00 

11-20 employees $160.00 

21-50 employees $260.00 

Excess of 50 employees $410.00 

Business License Late Fee (per TMC1 5.04.080)  10% to 15% 

Solicitor license  
(per TMC1 Chapter 5.04.030) 

Follows Business License 
Fee schedule 

Collection Agency Charge 25% 

Interest Charge  
(unless otherwise specified by TMC1) 9% 

Candidate filing fee $10.00 

Liquor license Fees (set by ORS 471.166(7)) 

New $25.00 

Renewal $25.00 

Ownership change $25.00 

Application for temporary use $25.00 

Notary Services (per notarial act) $10.00 

Pinball Machine & Other Similar Devices License 
(Monthly license fee) $10.00 

Taxicab Operator Fee (annual; set per TMC1 5.16.090) $60.00 

1Toledo Municipal Code 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 17 of 26

Exhibit A - Master Fee Schedule



City of Toledo  
Master Fee Schedule 

Resolution No. 1461, Exhibit A – Master Fee Schedule                 Page 2 of 4 

LIBRARY 

Photocopies   

Library materials (first 5 pages free)  

8.5 x 11, per side  $0.50 

8.5 x 14 & 11 x 17, per side  $1.00 

Microfilm printing 8.5 x 11 $0.50 

Library Card Replacement  $3.00  

Lost Materials  Replacement Cost  

Damaged Materials  Replacement Cost  

  

PLANNING 

Photocopies   

8.5 x 11, per side  $0.50 

11 x 17, per side  $1.00  

18 x 24 $8.00 

24 x 30 $10.00 

24 x 36 $15.00 

36 x 42 $20.00 

Annexation & Rezone  $1,500.00 

Appeal, Land Use (misc.) $535.00 

Appeal of Type II permit $260.00 

Appeal of Type III permit  $535.00 

Code Amendment  $930.00 

If permit requires Measure 56 public notice  $930.00 + notification costs 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment  $930.00 

If permit requires Measure 56 public notice  $930.00 + notification costs 

Conditional Use  $535.00 

Exception to Statewide Goal  $2,660.00 

Expedited Land Division  $2,000.00 

Interpretation, Code (official)  $170.00 

Lot Line Adjustment  $135.00 

Modification of approval 75% of original application fee  

Partition – Minor $535.00 

Partition – Major $930.00 

Planned Unit Development $930.00 + $20 per lot 

Replat – Minor $535.00 

Replat – Major  $930.00 

Riparian Modification Permit $200.00 

Restrictive Lot Line Covenant $100.00 + Admin Fee 

Similar Use (Planning Commission) $535.00 

Subdivision $930.00 

Temporary Use Permit $100.00 

Tree Permit $20.00 

Demolition Permit  $20.00 

  

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 18 of 26



City of Toledo  
Master Fee Schedule 

Resolution No. 1461, Exhibit A – Master Fee Schedule                 Page 3 of 4 

PLANNING CONTINUED 

Floodplain Development Permit $20.00 

Urban Growth Boundary Amendments $2,660.00 

Vacation – Street & Plats $2,000.00 

Variances  

Class A (Type I) $65.00 

Class B (Type II) $260.00 

Class C (Type III) $535.00 

Zone Change (Type IV) $930.00 

Multiple Land Use Applications  
Highest tier + 75% of each 

additional land use application 
when submitted together  

Multiple Type I Permits (City may waive some fees where overlapping permits do not need 
significant additional review)  

Type I permit not specified  $65.00 

Type II permit not specified  $270.00 

Type III permit not specified  $535.00 

Type IV permit not specified $930.00 

Grading/Excavation Permits  

20 to 100 cubic yards  $65.00 

101 to 1,000 cubic yards $80 for the first 100 cubic yards 
+ $15 for each additional 100 
cubic yards of fraction thereof 

1,001 to 10,000 cubic yards  $213 for the first 1,000 cubic 
yards plus $13 for each 

additional 1,000 cubic yards or 
fraction thereof 

10,001 to 100,000 cubic yards  
 

$365 for the first 10,000 cubic 
yards plus $50 for each 

additional 10,000 cubic yards or 
fraction thereof 

100,001 cubic yards or more  $797 for the first 100,000 cubic 
yards plus $30 for each 

additional 10,0000 cubic yards 
or fraction thereof 

  
  

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 19 of 26



City of Toledo  
Master Fee Schedule 

Resolution No. 1461, Exhibit A – Master Fee Schedule  Page 4 of 4

PUBLIC WORKS 

Bid/Contract documents $50.00 

Specification/Procedure Manual/Standards Manual 
(available on the city website) 

$20.00 

Utility Work requiring city vehicles and equipment/per 
hour 

Mechanic Service Rig $60.00 

Flatbed Truck $70.00 

Dump Truck $90.00 

Backhoe $90.00 

Vactor Truck $150.00 

Air Compressor $60.00 

Sweeper $150.00 

Personnel Costs 

Flagging Personnel Cost + Admin fee 

Operator(s)/crew Actual Personnel cost 

Other Personnel Actual Personnel cost 

Overtime Actual Personnel cost + Admin 
fee 

Sewer Connection $130.00 

Right-of-Way Permit $50.00 

Curbs/Sidewalk Permit Cost + Admin fee 

Engineering Review Cost + Admin Fee 

Public Works Permit Fee $140.00 

Pavement Disturbance Fee Cost + Admin fee 

Cutting & Trenching Cost + Admin fee 

Haulable Water $25 per 1,000 gallons 

PUBLIC SAFETY (POLICE & FIRE SERVICES) 

Public Safety Reports 

Up to ten (10) pages $10.00 

More than 10 pages $1.00 per side 

911 recordings $25.00 

Tow/impound fee $100.00 

Photographs $5.00 per photo (electronic 
only) 

Fingerprinting – per card $15.00 

Parking fines (Set by Toledo Municipal Code) 

False Alarm Response – after four calls per calendar 
year 

$50.00 each 

Dog Impound (fees assessed by Lincoln County) 

Emergency Services related to Fire Department 
Services  

Per State Fire Marshall 
Schedule 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 20 of 26



CITY OF TOLEDO 
REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

 

 

Meeting Date:  Agenda Topic: 

March 17, 2021 
Annexation of property NE 
Sturdevant Road and approval 
of contract with Civil West for 
engineering of Sewer extension 
to the property 

Council Goal: Agenda Type: 

Not Applicable Decision Items 

Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: 

City Manager J. Richter City Manager Judy Richter City Manager Judy Richter 

 
Recommendation:  
Motion to direct staff to work with property owner Kelly Foley on the annexation of his property on 
NE Sturdevant Road to the City of Toledo.   
Authorize City Manager to sign contract with Civil West for engineering services to extend the sewer 
line to the Kelly Foley property on Sturdevant.   
 
 
Background:  
Kelly Foley, owner of property on NE Sturdevant Road has approached the city about annexation of 
his property to the City of Toledo. He also requested that the City extend the sewer line to his property 
so he could access. At the time of his request, he was planning development of single family housing 
and possibly a multi-family unit on the property. He provided information that the county was possibly 
going to be doing an overlay of pavement on Sturdevant Road in the fall. He suggested the best time 
to install the sewer line would be before the overlay would be completed.  
It is possible that the property will be purchased for the relocation of the Toledo Oregon Department 
of Forestry offices.   
Either project would benefit from the annexation and the sewer line extension. 
 
Attached is a “Scope of Work proposal” for the engineering part of the sewer line extension.   
 
It is anticipated that the sewer line extension could be paid from System Development Charges fees.  
     
 
 
 
 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: Fiscal Year: GL Number: 

$29,996.00 2020-2021 042-420-608100 

 
Attachment: 
1. Map of NE Sturdevant Road property 
2. Scope of Work proposal from Civil West Engineering. 

 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 21 of 26



Lincoln County government use only.  Use for any other purpose is entirely at the risk of the user.  This product is for informational purposes and may not have been 
prepared for, or be suitable for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.  Users should review the primary information sources to ascertain their usability.

Map

Printed 03/11/2021 March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 22 of 26

att1, Map



1 | P a g e

Willamette Valley Office 
213 Water Ave. NW, Suite 100 

Albany, OR 97321 
541-223-5130 

South Coast Office 
486 E Street 

Coos Bay, OR 97420 
541-266-8601 

North Coast Office 
609 SW Hurbert Street 

Newport, OR 97365 
541-264-7040 

Rogue Valley Office 
830 O’Hare Parkway, Suite 102 

Medford, OR 97501 
541-326-4828 

E N G I N E E R I N G  S C O P E  O F  S E R V I C E S
NE Sturdevant Road Sanitary Sewer Extension Engineering Design Services 

Date: March 2, 2021  Work Order Number: 

To:  Bill Zuspan, Public Works Director, City of Toledo 
P.O. Box 220 
206 N. Main St.  
Toledo, OR 97391 

From: Keven Shreeve, PE, North Coast Regional Manager, Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. 
Timothy Gross, PE, Senior Project Manager, Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. 

RE: NE Sturdevant Road Sanitary Sewer Extension Engineering Design Services 
Civil West Project Number:  TBD 

Background and Understanding 

The City of Toledo (City) has requested that Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. (CWE) prepare a scope of services to 
design an extension of the sanitary sewer on NE Sturdevant Road from the south entrance of the Toledo Elementary School to 
a point approximately 700 feet north, for the purpose of providing sanitary sewer service for the future development of 
Tax Lot 901. A preliminary plan and profile of this sewer extension has been previously prepared by Curran 
McCloud, Inc. Consulting Engineers in 2006, but this design was never completed. 

The City has provided CWE a hardcopy plan and profile of the preliminary design for this section of sewer.  It is 
assumed this preliminary design was prepared using existing topographic and property boundary data and a 
survey was not completed at that time.  The proposed sanitary sewer along NE Sturdevant Road crosses a 
tributary of West Olalla Creek.  The preliminary profile indicates that the sanitary sewer alignment at the low spot 
where the road crosses the creek will not have much, if any, cover over the pipe.  This may require adjusting the 
road grade up for a short distance.  However, without survey data indicating manhole depth and centerline grades 
it is not possible to determine if this is necessary at this time. 

NE Sturdevant Road is under Lincoln County jurisdiction and the City has indicated that the County plans to 
resurface the road in September 2021.  Therefore, the City would like the project to have an expected notice-to-
proceed for construction beginning on July 1, 2021 with expected completion before September 1. 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 23 of 26

att2, Scope of Services



NE Sturdevant Road Sanitary Sewer Extension Engineering Design Services 

2 | P a g e  
 

Part A:  Scope of Work 
 
The following tasks have been identified to track the project’s progress.   
 
Task 1 – Project Management and Administration: CWE will provide the necessary project management and 
administrative services to conduct an orderly and well-managed project.  This will include organizational issues, 
financial, and other administrative services. This task also includes periodic project meetings with the City.  
 
Task 2 – Field Survey, Research and Base Map: Investigation of existing utilities and other site features will be 
conducted, and a field topographic survey will be performed of the project corridor including the full road cross 
section and side slopes to approximately 25 feet from toe of slope.  The survey will locate all features, including 
utilities, culverts, fences, roadway, etc. After the field survey is complete, a base map will be created upon which 
the design will be based.   
 
Task 3 – Preliminary Design and Engineers Report: Based upon survey data, a 30% preliminary design, cost 
estimate, and Preliminary Engineers Report (PER) will be prepared. Design and construction considerations will be 
discussed in the PER including if the proposed sewer alignment will have sufficient cover and/or if the road will 
need to be adjusted. If the road needs to be adjusted, engineering design will be considered additional work.  
 
Task 4 – Permitting: Based upon the findings and direction received from the City in Task 3, a right-of-way permit 
application will be submitted to Lincoln County.  The timing of the permit submission may vary based upon the 
level of preliminary design necessary due to potential grade impacts to the road. The design will also be submitted 
to DEQ for review and approval. 
 
Task 5 – Final Design and Specifications: Final plans and specifications will be completed based upon direction 
from the City, permitting requirements from Lincoln County, and review comments from DEQ. 
 
Task 6 – Bidding Services: The project will be advertised on ORPIN in anticipation of a July 1, 2021 notice to 
proceed.  This will require a bid opening scheduled in early June with the contract award going to the last City 
Council meeting in June. 
 
Task 7 – Reimbursables – This task will cover direct reimbursable expenses anticipated for the project. These 
include travel and per diem costs, reproduction and office expenses, and other reimbursable costs. 
 
Part B: Work Not Included (or otherwise provided by others) 
 
The following are not included in this Scope: 
 

• Permit fees.  
• Design fees associated with road modification, if needed.  
• Construction Support and Management. When design is complete, we will prepare a Scope of Services 

Amendment to provide construction phase support, if requested by the City. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 24 of 26



NE Sturdevant Road Sanitary Sewer Extension Engineering Design Services 

3 | P a g e  
 

Part C:  Project Schedule 
 

 
 
Part D:  Project Fee Proposal 
 
We propose to perform the above work on a Time and Materials (T&M) basis. CWE will invoice the City monthly 
based on the hours spent pursuant to the 2021 Rate Schedule attached hereto as Attachment A. A breakdown of 
the proposed fee is provided below for purposes of indicating the level of work anticipated and how we derived at 
the proposed overall fee; however, the invoice will only show one “Engineering Support” line item. If additional 
support or time is required beyond these allowances, we will communicate with the City on an amendment to the 
agreement.  Any additional work will be billed on a time and materials basis pursuant to the 2021 Rate Schedule. 

 

   
 

We are grateful for this opportunity to provide these services to the City.  Please let me know if you have any 
questions or if you wish to see any alterations to our proposed approach.  If this proposed approach is acceptable, 
please sign the accompanying Consultant Services Agreement and return a copy to our office for our records. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Keven T. Shreeve, PE 
North Coast Regional Manager 
kshreeve@civilwest.net 
541-264-7040 
 
 
 
 
Authorized Representative Signature Accepting Scope of Services     Date  

week: 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25 26
Project Management and Administration
Field Survey, Research and Base Map

Preliminary Design and Engineers Report
Permitting

Final Design and Specif ications
Bidding Services

Bid Opening and Project Aw ard
Construction

July August

2021

March April May June

Principal 
Engineer

Project 
Manager

Project 
Engineer Survey Crew Clerical Total Fee

$165.00 $150.00 $134.00 $160.00 $52.00
1 Project Management and Administration 8 16 16 $4,552.00
2 Field Survey, Research and Base Map 8 24 $5,040.00
3 Preliminary Design and Engineers Report 24 24 $6,816.00
4 Permitting 8 8 $2,272.00
5 Final Design and Specif ications 30 24 $7,716.00
6 Bidding Services 16 $2,400.00
7 Reimbursables $1,200.00

 Total Hours 8 102 56 24 16 $29,996.00

Engineering Fee Structure

Support RoleTask

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 25 of 26

mailto:kshreeve@civilwest.net


NE Sturdevant Road Sanitary Sewer Extension Engineering Design Services 

4 | P a g e  
 

A t t a c h m e n t  A  
 
 
 

 
 
 

STAFF/ITEM BILLING RATE
ENGINEERING 
     Principal Engineer $165
     Project Manager $150
     Senior Project Engineer $145
     Project Engineer $134
     Engineering Technician $114
     Staff Engineer $84
     Inspector 1 TBD
     Inspector 2 $134
     Inspector 3 $114
     Engineering Intern $50
     Clerical $52

Surveying
    Senior Surveyor (PLS) $150
    Senior Survey Technician $120
    Survey Technician $103
    1-person Survey Crew $160
    2-person Survey Crew $188
    3-person Survey Crew $225
REIMBURSABLES
     Mileage - or current IRS Rate $0.575
     Lodging, meals as required for travel Cost
     Reproduction, Printing, Etc. Cost plus 10%
     Subconsultants Cost plus 10%

Civil West Engineering Services, Inc. - 2021 Class B Rate Schedule 

March 17, 2021 Toledo City Council Packet Page 26 of 26


	3-17-2021.agenda
	2-23-2021.goalminutes
	2-24-2021.wsminutes
	Renewal of Intergovernmental Agreement with the Greater Toledo Pool & Recreation District
	Resolution No. 1461, AResolution of the Toledo CityCouncil establishing a MasterFee Schedule for servicesprovided by the City of Toledoand repealing Resolution No.1377
	Annexation of property NESturdevant Road and approvalof contract with Civil West for engineering of Sewer extension to the property



